
 

 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
 
The Honourable Jeff Yurek  
Minister of the Environment, Conservation, and Parks 
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation, and Parks 
 
The Honourable Rod Phillips 
Minister of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
 

November 17, 2020 
 
Dear Premier Ford, Minister Yurek and Minister Phillips, 
 
We are writing to you today in response to the proposed amendments to the Conservation Authorities 
Act (CA Act), contained in Schedule 6, Bill 229. We anticipate that some of the more prescriptive changes 
proposed in Bill 229 will lead to the opposite of your government’s stated desire to help conservation 
authorities (CA) modernize and operate with greater focus, transparency and efficiency. 
 
The Progressive Conservative Government under the leadership of George Drew passed the Conservation 
Authorities Act and the Planning Act. He recognized that Ontario needed to invest in a sound 
transformative strategy to help Ontarians recover from the devastation of World War Two, not just 
economically, but also emotionally, as a community. These progressive actions were further strengthened 
by Premier Frost. Today, as the Province faces unprecedented pressures from both, a global pandemic 
and climate change, we need to strengthen the cooperative role played by CAs.  
 
For over 60 years, Conservation Halton (CH) has served the interests of its residents and stayed true to 
those founding principles – conserving the environment to enable watershed communities to prosper 
socially and economically while ensuring resilience and safety for generations to come. From planting four 
million trees, to managing 11,000 acres of land, teaching millions of children, ensuring people build their 
homes and businesses in safe places and constantly checking the pulse of our environment through 
monitoring and restoration, CH has been a trusted, accountable partner to the Province and our 
municipalities. Today, CH serves over one million residents in one of the fastest growing areas in Ontario. 
Our residents and municipalities depend on us to deliver cost-effective services that ensure growth and 
development support sustainable and vibrant communities. 
 
CH has played a collaborative role in the previous consultations regarding the modernization of the CA 
Act. While it was unexpected to see further proposed changes to the Act in Bill 229, we are encouraged 
that the purpose of the Act to provide for the organization and delivery of programs and services that 



 

further conservation, restoration, development, and management of natural resources in Ontario 
watersheds remains the same.  
 
It is our view that several of the proposed amendments will increase the risk to life and property from 
natural hazards and the degradation of the environment. We respectfully request you withdraw 
Schedule 6 from Bill 229 until a more thorough analysis of the appropriate solutions can take place, 
with more clarity on what problems were identified through the consultation process. We also 
encourage you to engage with CAs as you work on regulations that will eventually define the limits of the 
various CA Act clauses. We feel this is critical to ensure that the focus and performance of CAs is actually 
improved.  
 
Several changes, such as those related to governance, ministerial authority to issue permits, the removal 
of our ability to appeal decisions at LPAT, and the removal of enforcement tools will lead to increased 
administrative costs, red tape, delays, and above all bring into question the integrity and transparency of 
the permitting and planning process. These changes will also result in a more uncertain, litigious and 
discordant atmosphere, which will hinder our ability to work with applicants to find practical solutions 
for safe development. These changes will undo the hard work CH has done over the last five years to 
ensure we are customer-centric, accountable, efficient and solutions oriented. Specifically: 
 

• There is no duplication, red tape or going beyond our mandate 
CH and our municipal partners work in a complementary way, avoid duplication of effort and 
remain focused on our core responsibilities through detailed MOUs and workplans. CH worked 
with our partners and customers to develop clear, quantifiable service delivery targets, which we 
have achieved, and publicly reported on with consistency. We track all permitting and plan review 
metrics on a quarterly basis to ensure nothing is slipping.  
 

• Our permit/planning fees only cover the cost to review and we have high service standards 
CH works with the development industry to ensure there is transparency on how our fees are 
determined, what costs are included and what standard of service we deliver in exchange. This 
approach is highly appreciated by our BILD chapter and they have encouraged other agencies to 
adopt our approach. We will be happy to share correspondence to this effect with you. We work 
on a cost-recovery model to ensure we keep the cost to taxpayers as low as possible.  

 
• The integrity of the permitting process will be compromised – these amendments will increase 

risk, liability, delays, and lead to inconsistency  
CH currently issues 95% of minor permits and 98% of major permits within 30 and 90 review days 
respectively (not calendar days). We value the process as much as we value the output of our 
services in this area. It is our view that the proposed amendments that would allow the Minister 
of Natural Resources and Forestry jurisdiction over certain permit applications and the appeal 
process has the potential to allow individuals to circumvent checks and balances that exist to 
protect the communities in our watersheds. It is unclear whether the minister would have regard 
for local conditions, technical input or Board-approved policies.  These proposed changes may 
inadvertently cause more people in the community to be at risk, rather than protected, from 
natural hazards. 
 

• The amendments introduce a “stakeholder governance model” that has no legal precedence  
The proposed changes to the composition of CA boards negatively disrupts what is currently a 
relatively apolitical structure. This will significantly reduce the capacity of boards to make 



 

decisions on a watershed basis. Our Board of Directors carry out their fiduciary responsibilities, 
guide strategy, approve policies in support of our Provincial and municipal responsibilities and 
track performance. They ensure CH makes decisions with integrity, based solely on our core 
responsibilities. It is our view that changing the composition to reflect elected officials that 
represent the interests of their respective municipalities creates a setting ripe for conflict of 
interest. It runs counter to all governance principles.  
 

• These amendments compromise our ability to create jobs & deliver services without tax dollars 
Conservation Halton is focused on our core programs. We are equally competent and resourceful 
in providing further opportunities for Ontarians in recreation and education on our conservation 
lands—especially during the pandemic when the need for safe and accessible greenspace is at an 
all-time high—and we are even more proud that we are able to fund these opportunities 100% 
self-sufficiently. Our responsible monetization of assets and generation of revenue creates value 
for the community as well as employment opportunities. We are concerned that should the 
Ministry set fees or other limits on non-mandatory programs and services—particularly those that 
we already successfully run without the support of tax dollars—our ability to provide important 
recreational, educational, and employment opportunities that allow our community to interact 
with conservation will be significantly diminished. Our municipal levy for 2021 is under 28% and 
the provincial contribution is close to 2% of our total budget. We have worked hard to achieve 
such low reliance on taxpayer funding. At the same time, we have expanded access to our parks 
by 35% this season, giving Ontario families a safe place to visit during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
In conclusion, we do not want to see an increased risk to public safety, or increased liabilities to the 
Province, municipalities, and conservation authorities. Nor do we want more red tape, disruption and 
ultimately delays in helping the government achieve its goal of economic recovery. Given the time 
sensitive nature of this Bill, we encourage the Province to consult with Conservation Halton and other CAs 
in an expedient manner. We have attached a more detailed (Board) report on our key concerns. 
 
We appreciate you taking the time to consider our concerns. We feel there are better solutions to deal 
with actual and perceived issues. We would be pleased to discuss these and our desire to work with you 
to define the governing regulations at your earliest convenience. Please contact Conservation Halton CEO, 
Hassaan Basit (CEOoffice@hrca.on.ca) so we can help support your mandate while ensuring success for 
all stakeholders.   
 
Regards, 
 
Gerry Smallegange 

 
Chair, Conservation Halton Board of Directors 
 
Mayor Rob Burton, BA, MS 
  

 
Town of Oakville 

 
  
 
 
Mayor Gordon Krantz 

 
Town of Milton  
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Mayor Marianne Meed Ward 

 
City of Burlington 
 

 
Mayor Rick Bonnette 
 

 
Town of Halton Hills

 
Cc:  
The Honourable John Yakabuski, Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry 
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry  
 
The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
 
Ted Arnott  
MPP Wellington—Halton Hills 
 
Jane McKenna 
MPP Burlington  
 
Effie J. Triantafilopoulos  
MPP Oakville North—Burlington  
 
Stephen Crawford  
MPP Oakville 
 
Parm Gill  
MPP Milton 
 
Andrea Horwath 
MPP Hamilton Centre 
 
Sandy Shaw  
MPP Hamilton West—Ancaster—Dundas  
 
Rudy Cuzzetto  
MPP Mississauga—Lakeshore 
 
Donna Skelly 
MPP Flamborough-Glanbrook 
 
 


